Public Document Pack
Stronger Communities
Committee Meeting of Witney Town Council

4;4,.

Monday, 17th November, 2025 at 6.00 pm

To members of the Stronger Communities Committee - T Ashby, R Smith, G Meadows, A Bailey, D Edwards-
Hughes, D Enright, A Mubin and J Treloar (and all other Town Councillors for information).

You are hereby summonsed to the above meeting to be held in the Gallery Room, The Corn Exchange, Witney
for the transaction of the business stated in the agenda below.

Admission to Meetings
All Council meetings are open to the public and press unless otherwise stated.

Numbers of the public will be limited, with priority given to those who have registered to speak on an item on
the agenda. Any member of the public wishing to attend the meeting should contact the Committee Clerk
derek.mackenzie@witney-tc.gov.uk in advance.

Recording of Meetings

Under the Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 the council’s public meetings may be
recorded, which includes filming, audio-recording as well as photography.

As a matter of courtesy, if you intend to record any part of the proceedings, please let the Deputy Town Clerk or
Committee Clerk know before the start of the meeting.

Agenda

1. Apologies for absence

To consider apologies and reasons for absence.

Committee members who are unable to attend the meeting should notify the Committee Clerk
derek.mackenzie@witney-tc.gov.uk prior to the meeting, stating the reason for absence.

Standing Order 8(e)(v) permits the appointment of substitute Councillors to a Committee whose role is
to replace ordinary Councillors at a meeting of a Committee if ordinary Councillors of the Committee
have confirmed to the Proper Officer before the meeting that they are unable to attend.

2. Declarations of Interest
Members are reminded to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests in any items under consideration
at this meeting in accordance with the Town Council’s Code of Conduct.

3. Minutes (Pages 4 -12)

a) To receive and consider the minutes of the Stronger Communities Committee held on 15

September 2025.

b) Matters arising from the minutes not covered elsewhere on the agenda. (Questions on the
progress of any item).

Date of Publication 11 November 2025

Page 1


mailto:derek.mackenzie@witney-tc.gov.uk
mailto:derek.mackenzie@witney-tc.gov.uk

Public Participation

The meeting will adjourn for this item.

Members of the public may speak for a maximum of five minutes each during the period of public
participation, in line with Standing Order 25. Matters raised shall relate to the following items on the
agenda.

Finance Report: Revised Revenue Budget 2025/26 and Draft Base Revenue Budget for 2026/27

To receive and consider the report of the Responsible Financial Officer (RFO) and the Draft Revised
Revenue Budget for 2025/26 and Draft Budget for 2026/27. (Report To Follow)

Revenue Growth Items, Special Revenue Projects, and Capital Projects

To receive and consider the report of the Responsible Financial Officer (RFO) with an update on the
current year’s work programme relating to Capital and Special Revenue Projects; as well as projects
identified during the course of the year for inclusion as Revenue Growth Items or Special Revenue
Projects in the Council’s Revenue Budget or Capital Projects for 2026/27 and beyond. (Report To
Follow)

Communications

7.

Communications Report (Pages 13 - 14)

The Committee received and considered the report of the Communications & Community Engagement
Officer (C&CEO). (Report To Follow)

Community Engagement

8.

10.

11.

12.

Community Engagement Report

To receive and consider the report of the Communications & Community Engagement Officer.

a) National Pride Working Party

To receive a verbal update from officers following the inaugural meeting of the National Pride
Working Party held on 13 November 2025 and consider its recommendations.
b) Witney Forum Minutes (Pages 15 - 18)

To receive the minutes of the meeting of the Witney Forum held on 2 October 2025.

In Bloom Competitions & Community Gardening 2026-27

To receive and consider the report of the Communications & Community Engagement Officer. (Report
To Follow)

Youth Council (Pages 19 - 24)

To receive the report of the Admin Assistant — Communications & Engagement.

Youth Services (Pages 25 - 28)

To receive and consider the report of the Deputy Town Clerk.

Town Hall, Market Square Mrs Sharon Groth FSLCC FCMI T: 01993 704379

Witney Town Clerk E: info@witney-tc.gov.uk
Oxon

0X28 6AG w: www.witnhey-tc.gov.uk

Page 2


mailto:info@witney-tc.gov.uk

13.

14.

Flag Flying Policy Review (Pages 29 - 35)

To receive and consider the report of the Deputy Town Clerk with an accompanying updated Flag
Flying Policy.

Public Space Protection Order (PSPO) - A40 Dual Carriageway (Pages 36 - 38)

To Formally endorse support for an application for a Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO) which
would prohibit the use of the A40 for Pony & Trap racing - (Minute 353 Full Council 23.06.25 Refers)

Street Furniture & Infrastructure

15.

16.

17.

18.

Events

19.

Bus Shelter Replacement 25/26

To receive and consider the report of the Operations Manager. (Report To Follow)

Vehicle Activated Sign (VAS) for Witney (Pages 39 - 41)

To receive and consider the report of the Deputy Town Clerk.

Litter Picking Equipment (Pages 42 - 55)

To receive and consider the report of the Deputy Town Clerk

Street Furniture Correspondence. (Pages 56 - 60)

To receive and consider a communication from West Oxfordshire District Council concerning a street
furniture request in Witney High Street.

To receive and consider a further communication from Oxfordshire County Council’s High Street
project scheme concerning the installation of street furniture.

Officers are mindful of the Oxfordshire County Council High Street project and are working with both
Authorities.

Third Party Events (Pages 61 - 80)

To receive and consider the report of the Venue & Events Officer.

sa\l,-C

Town Clerk
Town Hall, Market Square Mrs Sharon Groth FSLCC FCMI T: 01993 704379
Witney Town Clerk E: info@witney-tc.gov.uk
Oxon
0X28 6AG w: www.witnhey-tc.gov.uk

Page 3


mailto:info@witney-tc.gov.uk

Town Hall, Market Square Mrs Sharon Groth FSLCC FCMI
Witney Town Clerk
Oxon

0X28 6AG

T:01993 704379
E: info@witney-tc.gov.uk

w: www.witney-tc.gov.uk
Page 4 s


mailto:info@witney-tc.gov.uk

Agenda Iltem 3

STRONGER COMMUNITIES COMMITTEE MEETING OF THE
WITNEY TOWN COUNCIL

Held on Monday, 15 September 2025
At 6.00 pm in the Gallery Room, The Corn Exchange, Witney
Present:

Councillor T Ashby (Chair)

Councillors: R Smith J Treloar

G Meadows D Temple (In place of D Edwards-

D Enright Hughes)

A Mubin R Crouch (In place of A Bailey)
Officers: Sharon Groth Town Clerk

Derek Mackenzie Senior Administrative Officer &

Committee Clerk

Annie Hathaway Business Administration Apprentice

Others: Six members of the public.

SC515 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors D Edwards Hughes and A Bailey,
Councillors D Temple and R Crouch attended respectively as substitutes.

SC516 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor T Ashby declared a personal, non-prejudicial interest in Agenda item 7 due to his
connection with Witney Buttercross Scouts.

Councillor R Smith declared a personal interest in Agenda Item 8 owing to the connection with
the provider of the detached Youth Services provision through the church she attended.

Councillor J Treloar declared a personal interest in Agenda Item 14 due to his relationship with
the individuals that organised the Witney Music Festival.

There were no other declarations from Members or Officers
SC517 MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting of the Stronger Communities Committee held on 14 July 2025 were
received.

SC415 — A correction was requested to clarify that the market had not been sold but rather a
new operator had been appointed to run the market.

Page 5



SC518

SC519

SC520

Stronger Communities - 15 September 2025

Resolved:

That, the minutes of the Stronger Communities Committee held on 14 July 2025 approved as a
correct record of the meeting, subject to the above amendment, and be signed by the Chair.

During the following item Cllr A Mubin arrived at 6:05pm.

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

The Committee adjourned for this item.

The Committee received representations from a Director of West Oxfordshire Community
Transport concerning Agenda Item 12 along with further representation from the Chair of
Witney Chamber of Commerce concerning Agenda Item 11, The Station regarding Agenda Item 8

and Witney Music Festival on Agenda Item 14.

Members welcomed the varied participation and looked forward to discussing each item as they
arose later in the meeting.

The Committee reconvened.

FINANCE REPORT

The Committee received and considered the report of the Responsible Financial Officer (RFO)
detailing income and expenditure for budgets which were the responsibility of the Committee.

The Town Clerk noted that the Council would be considering its budget during the next cycle of
meetings, and that the RFQO’s report had requested Members to suggest any inclusions for the
2026/27 budget. She further advised that items later on the agenda might give rise to budgetary
implications.

Resolved:
1. That, the report be noted and,
2. That, the management accounts of the Stronger Communities Committee for the period

1 April to 30 June 2025 be approved.

COMMUNICATIONS REPORT

The Committee received and considered the report of the Communications & Community
Engagement Officer.

Members agreed that the Communication Survey should be rerun in order to establish which
means of communication were most appropriate for residents. It was further agreed that this be
included as part of the next resident’s annual survey as this was delivered to all Witney
properties.

Regarding the production of an additional resident newsletter Members had varied opinions on
whether this should be financed by the inclusion of paid advertising from businesses. There were
concerns that the news content of the newsletter would not reach its intended audience as it
would potentially be seen as a piece of additional junk mail, there were also concerns regarding
staff time in organising the advertisements.

Page 6



SC521

Stronger Communities - 15 September 2025

It was proposed by Clir D Enright that instead of a newsletter, a calendar of town events be
considered. The Chair asked that Officers report back on the feasibility of this to the next
meeting of the Committee, along with the consideration of an external company carrying out
the design and advertisement procurement work.

A Member asked that inclusion of paid advertising be considered for the existing printed spring
newsletter so as to reduce the overall cost to the Council of its production and distribution.

The Committee considered the erection of an information sign for the COVID Memorial
following persistent Anti-Social Behaviour over the summer. Members were in agreement of a
budget of £100 being set.

Recommended:

1. That the report be noted and,

That, the Communication Survey be rerun in the next resident satisfaction survey and,

3. That Officers report back to the Committee on the publication of an events calendar
utilising an external company for its production and,

4. That consideration be given to the inclusion of paid advertising in its existing printed
newsletter in order to reduce costs,

5. That, a sign be installed at the COVID memorial utilising a budget of £100.

N

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT REPORT

The Committee received and considered the report of the Communications & Community
Engagement Officer (C&CEO).

Members were pleased to hear updates on the variety of subjects included in the Officers report
and were in agreement with the proposals to support and promote the Orange the World,
International Men’s Day, World Mental Health Day, International Car Free Day, SSE Priority
Service Register, Christmas competitions, Citizen of the Year awards and walks by the Witney
Museum for Remembrance Sunday.

The Committee also discussed ideas for the celebration of British values and national pride,
including ideas to mark St George’s Day, with events such as a Tea Party, Civic Service at St
Marys Church and a Last Night at the Proms styled event at the Corn Exchange; additionally,
Members were keen that local businesses should be involved. It was agreed that a Working
Party would be created with a membership of four or five Councillors along with the inclusion of
non-councillor members being agreed at the next meeting of the Council. The Working Party
could then explore ideas further.

Members discussed the proposed flag flying arrangements which would see the Town flag flown
daily and additional flags on specific special occasions, such as the marking of anniversaries of
the Battle of Britain and the United Nations which were discussed and agreed upon. Officers
were requested to draft a Policy document for consideration at the next meeting of the
Committee.

Members were supportive of the request from Thames Valley Police to hold a “Have a go” event

on The Leys, they hoped this would go towards addressing the increase in Anti-Social Behaviour
witnessed around the town, particularly over the summer months. It was agreed that the subject

Page 7



SC522

SC523

Stronger Communities - 15 September 2025

be discussed further at the meeting of the Council on 6 October where a representative of TVP
would hopefully be in attendance.

The Town Clerk asked the Committee to consider the extension of an invitation to RAF Brize
Norton to exercise their Freedom of the Town on what would be the 50™ anniversary on its
granting on 24 September 2027. Although there were concerns raised as to the presence of
weapons in the town at such an event, all Members were in agreement.

Recommended:

1. That, the report be noted and,

2. That, a Working Party be created to explore ideas celebrating Britishness and national pride
and,

3. That, Nominations of up to five councillors to join the Working Party be taken at the
meeting of the Council on 6 October 2025 and,

4. That, the anniversary of the Battle of Britain be added to the Council flag flying calendar
and,

5. That, Officers draft an updated flag flying policy for consideration at the meeting of the
Committee on 17 November and for it to be widely advertised upon adoption and,

6. That, the Council support the request for a guided walk at Tower Hill Cemetery on
Remembrance Day and,

7. That, the Council provide support to the “Orange the World” campaign with social media
posts and lighting of the Corn Exchange on 25 November and,

8. That, the SSE priority service be promoted both via social media outlets and the users of
café 1863 and,

9. That, the 80th Anniversary of the United Nations on 24" October be marked by a flag flying
and coffee morning with all costs being met by the Mayor’s civic allowance and,

10. That, the Council support Thames Valley Police’s “have a go” event with free use of The
Leys and,

11. That, the updated Community Window Policy be recommended for approval and,

12. That, RAF Brize Norton be invited to mark its 50th Anniversary of the Freedom of Witney in
2027.

WITNEY FORUM MEETING NOTES

The Committee Clerk apologised for the inclusion of the Witney Forum notes as these had been
presented and noted at the meeting of this Committee on 21 July 2025.

During the following Agenda Item.
Clir J Treloar left the meeting briefly between 7:25 and 7:28pm
A Member of the public joined the meeting at 7:30pm

YOUTH SERVICES

The Committee received and considered the report of the Deputy Town Clerk along with the
earlier participation from the representative of The Station.

Members acknowledged the updates provided on the Youth Services grant allocations and
welcomed the way in which the grant allocations had been dealt with.

The Committee welcomed the update provided in the report as well as the participation of The
Station’s representative outlining their proposals for future funding. Members were in

Page 8



SC524

SC525

Stronger Communities - 15 September 2025

agreement that the use of the 1863 café be granted for evening half-term youth cafés in October
and February with The Station covering the cost of a bar staff member and purchasing drinks at
cost price. Regarding the future funding of The Station the Chair suggested that this item be
considered at the end of the agenda in closed session.

Members were disappointed not to receive a report from APCAM providing feedback on the
Mental Health Drop in & We Game sessions however, they hoped that this would be
forthcoming ahead of their consideration of the 2026-27 budget.

Recommended:

1. That, the report and verbal updates be noted and,

That, the updates regarding the youth services grant awards be noted and,

3. That, The Station be granted use of Café 1863 to run evening youth café on the terms
agreed previously.

~

YOUTH COUNCIL UPDATE

The Committee received the report of the Communications & Engagement Administrative
Assistant regarding the recent activity of the Youth Council.

Members were informed of two new additions to the Youth Council, along with two further
potential members. It was hoped that, with the continued support and guidance of Officers,
Youth Councillor mentors, and possible collaboration with existing local school Councils,
progress could be made towards achieving some of the Youth Council’s objectives.

Members were in agreement with the use of WhatsApp to aid communication within the Youth
Council and for the creation of a newsletter to be issued to local schools, it was suggested that
the Kings School and Cokethorpe School were included in the distribution.
Resolved:

1. That, the report be noted and,

2. That, WhatsApp be approved as a form of communication and,

3. That, a monthly slide newsletter be created and issued to local schools.

Cllr A Mubin left the meeting at 7:34pm

CHRISTMAS TREE AND EVENT SPONSORSHIP

The Committee received and considered the report of the Project Officer which covered the
upcoming Christmas activity for 2025.

Members discussed the options for the distribution of the Social Value Fund, provided via the
Christmas Lights contract and agreed the charities supported in 2024 should once again be the
recipients as they offered support to a broad scope across the town. These were; Witney
Foodbank, Witney Food Revolution, Witney Community Church and High Street Methodist
Church and they should each be awarded £250 from the fund.

The Committee also welcomed the proposal to raise sponsorship for both the Christmas Trees

and the Advent Fayre Event. It was felt this would enhance local business relations as well as
provide budget relief for the Council.

Page 9



Stronger Communities - 15 September 2025

Recommended:

1. That, the report be noted and

2. That, Officers advise LITE of the beneficiaries of the Christmas lights social value fund
and

3. That, the Christmas lights sponsorship scheme be approved.

Cllr A Mubin rejoined the meeting at 7:40pm

SC526 WITNEY CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

SC527

The Committee received and considered the report of the Deputy Town Clerk along with the
earlier participation from the Chair of the Witney Chamber of Commerce.

Members discussed the reformation of the Witney Town Centre Forum as they felt it important
to work with West Oxfordshire District Council, Cotswold Markets, and local businesses. It was
also felt that the Town Partnership organisation which had been led by WODC Officers should be
involved so that any information and ideas gathered by them could be incorporated.

The Committee were pleased to support this initiative and lead as an organisation so as to take a
strong role in progressing the formation of the Forum which they hoped would be supported by
the Witney Chamber of Commerce.

Members agreed that the Town Council should have three positions on the Forum and that
nominations of these should take place at the meeting of the Council on 6 October 2025.

Recommended:
1. That, the report be noted and,
2. That, establishment of a Town Centre Forum be approved with Witney Town Council
carrying out administration of the Forum.
3. That, nominations of the three Councillors to join the Forum be taken at the meeting of
the Council on 6 October 2025.
Clir D Enright left the meeting at 7:45pm

WEST OXFORDSHIRE COMMUNITY TRANSPORT

The Committee received the request from West Oxfordshire Community Transport along with
representation from a Director of WOCT earlier in the meeting. The request was for an increase
to the annual grant awarded by the Council.

Members were advised of a correction to the amount being requested. The letter had stated an
increase from £21,000 to £26,000, however the current level of grant was £23,500 and therefore
an increase of only £2,500 was requested.

Several members spoke passionately about the essential service that WOCT provided and their

concerns if the additional funding was not provided, it was highlighted that many residents,
particularly the elderly relied on the services of WOCT to complete their daily activities.

Page 10



SC528

SC529

Stronger Communities - 15 September 2025

The Town Clerk advised that funds could be found to support the request from other unpent
budget lines with an example of the Water safety budget being given. She also suggested that
the timing of the grant was an important factor, specifically whether it applied for the Council’s
full financial year or was pro-rated over a shorter period, in which case the actual amount
awarded this financial year would be less than £2,500.

The Chair spoke of his concerns at the awarding of the grant and proposed that no award be
made and that he writes to Oxfordshire County Council (OCC) asking that they fund the gap that
existed. The proposal was seconded by Clir J Treloar.

An alternative proposal to award the additional grant of £2,500 was proposed by Clir R Smith,
seconded by ClIr R Crouch.

A vote was taken for Members to agree to one of the two proposals, a request from Clir G
Meadows asked that the names of those voting be taken. The result of the vote was:

e No additional grant award — For: Cllrs A Mubin, J Treloar, D Temple and T Ashby.
e Anaward of £2,500 — For: Cllrs R Smith, G Meadows and R Crouch.

It was therefore agreed that no award be made and that the Chair write to OCC to request their
intervention to consider funding the gap in WOCT’s needs.

Recommended:

1. That, the request from WOCT be noted and,

2. That, the additional grant award be not agreed and the annual grant remain at £23,500
and,

3. That, the Chair writes to OCC requesting their consideration of additional financial
support to WOCT.

SUSPENSION OF STANDING ORDER NO 5(W)

Resolved

That, Standing Order 5(w) be suspended in order to allow the meeting to continue as it had now
lasted for two hours.

WINTER PREPARATIONS

The Committee received and considered the proposed sites for additional grit bins.

The proposed sites for three bins to be installed along Centenary Way on the new Windrush
Place Estate had been provisionally discussed with Oxfordshire County Council (OCC) Winter
Services team, however as the roads were yet to be formally adopted Officers had been
informed these could not be considered further.

Members agreed that Officers should reapproach OCC to establish if procurement of the same
style bins was made by the Town Council, with the approval of the Windrush Place consortium

landowner, would the grit bins be adopted along with the road infrastructure at a later date.

Members heard that the proposed site at Springfield Oval that had been approved at the
meeting of the Committee on 14 July 2025 would shortly be installed.

Page 11



SC530

SC531

Stronger Communities - 15 September 2025

Resolved:

That, Officers liaise with OCC regarding the installation of the proposed Grit Bins at Windrush
Place Estate.

THIRD PARTY EVENTS

The Committee received and considered the report of the Venue & Events Officer which
provided details of the past and upcoming events held on the Council’s land.

Members heard that the subsidised lettings budget had been oversubscribed in 2025/26, and
that requests for 2026/27 were expected to rise further, partly due to the additional use granted
to users of The Leys. The Committee were broadly supportive of increasing the subsidised
lettings budget, noting that costs would rise in any case in line with the annual hire rate
percentage increase.

With regard to the Council’s contribution to Witney Carnival, the Town Clerk advised that the
Carnival Committee should submit funding applications in good time to align with the Council’s
budget cycle. This would ensure anticipated requests could be included in the budget, rather
than received mid-year and risking an overspend.

The Committee Clerk advised that Officers had met with the organisers of Witney Music Festival
earlier in the day and that they had given an understanding of the level of feedback required
from Witney Music Festival in order to provide the Council with the confidence required to
support the ongoing partnership. It was agreed that on receipt of the information from WMF
that Officers prepare a report on the grant award for consideration by the Committee on 17
November 2025.

Recommended:

1. That, the report and verbal updates be noted and,

2. That, the subsidised lettings budget be increased in 2026-27 to reflect the additional
expenditure plus the annual percentage inflationary increase and,

3. That, an increase in the Town Council’s contribution to Witney Carnival for 2026/27 be
not agreed at this stage, but the Carnival Committee be encouraged to submit its
funding request in good time for consideration as part of the Council’s budget-setting
cycle. and,

4. That, Witney Music Festival be asked to provide comprehensive feedback on the 2025
event and Officers prepare a full report for consideration of the grant award for the
2026 Witney Music Festival.

Three Members of the Public left at 8:08pm

THE STATION - SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENT AND FUNDING FOR 2026/27

At the discretion of the Chair the consideration of the budget request did not take place under
Agenda Item 8 and was discussed independently.

The Committee heard that the request was to increase the current funding by £10,400 from
£18,000 to £28,400 which was broadly similar to the original award of £27,000 made to them for
the 2024/25 financial year. The Station had evolved over the previous 18 months and now
looked to develop a programme of changes to support the young people of Witney.

Page 12



Stronger Communities - 15 September 2025

Members were conscious that the Service Level Agreement between The Station and the Council
should reflect a detached youth service and allow for the Council to provide direction and
guidance when highlighting problem areas.

The Committee unanimously agreed that the requested grant of £28,400 be included in the
budget setting calculations however, this would be subject to a newly established Service Level
Agreement being drawn up, the drafting of which was delegated to the Chair, Leader, Clir R
Crouch and Deputy Town Clerk.

Recommended:

1. That, the request for funding be noted and,

2. That, £28,400 be considered for budget purposes for the provision of a detached youth
service in 2026-27 and,

3. That, it be delegated to the Chair, Leader, Clir R Crouch and Deputy Town Clerk to draw
up an updated Service Level Agreement.

The meeting closed at: 8.22 pm

Chair

Page 13



yT abed

”»y ”

WITNEY

TOWN COUNCIL

Date Story Reported in Positive Negative Neutral PR Issued Social Media Post News Article Page Enquiry Response
lIllEh.IIWWW.UKIUIUIlIa'n.LU.U
Oxfordshire's largest funfair ;
3.9.25 g Oxford Mail Yes Yes Yes e
to open for an extra day res-largest-funfair-open-
Water Play Park Closes for ) . yS-
10.9.25 y Witney Gazette, Oxford Mail Yes No Yes k/news/25444010.leys
Season splash-park-witney-close-
Union Jack raised in Witney to|, . . . k/news/25467824.union-
15.9.25 mark Battle of Britain Day Witney Gazette, Oxford Mail Yes No Yes i ck-raised-withov-mark-
hat " H
TTLL . . .CO.U
Oxfordshire’s biggest funfair i
15.9.25 Snire’s bigee Oxford Mail Yes No Yes kinews/25467509.0xfordsh,
opens in 'atrocious' weather res-b!qqest-funfa|r—opens-
Silt build-up removal brings :
20.9.95 . p g BBC News Yes No Yes https.//www.bbc.co.uk/news
river to normal level [articles/ce84znwxdwgo
Warning as 20 tonnes of o TIPS /TWWW.OXTOTONTA.Co-0
) Oxford Mail, Witney Gazette, BBC .hgv-
23.9.25  [gravel comes to Oxfordshire y Yes No Yes k/news/2§g?7o51 hav |
nark News, MSN warning-20-tonnes-gravel-
Witney preparing to host its itney-
1.10.25 Vitney preparing Oxford Mail Yes Yes Yes kinews/25504470 witney-
first Eco Fair next week preparing-host-first-eco-fair-
llup':..//wv{/\;v.um
Witney residents to speak i
1.10.25 ey rest 0sp Thisisoxfordshire, Oxford Mail Yes No Yes €.c0.uk/news/25505380.wit
with councillors this weekend ney-re.5|dents-speak-
nuﬁmﬁﬂﬂ‘@ﬁﬂ TEC
Popular Oxfordshire park wins|Witney Gazette, Oxford Mail, o.uk/news/25512207 .popul
6.10.25 Yes No Yes 5 ]
royal horticultural gold award [Yahoo!News ar-oxfordshire-park-wins-
H o
Witney: Emergency bleed R PeRir bRt teTe
12.10.25 |control kit installed by town  |Witney Gazette, Oxford Mail Yes No Yes o.uk/news/269531564. witney
emergency-bleed-control-
hall Htphalmr Ao
15.10.25 |Emergency Kit Installed Witney Gazette, Oxford Mail Yes No Yes kinews/25531564 witney-
emergency-bleed-control-
MP and councillors view P
22.10.25 Witney Gazette, Oxford Mail Yes No Yes k/news/25559082.witney:

progress at development

mp-councillors-view-

/. Wa}| epuaby



GT abed

Date Story Reported in Positive Negative Neutral PR Issued Social Media Post News Article Page Enquiry Response
NMUPS./7TWWW. OXTOTarTdin.Co.u
22.10.25 |Witney Lake path work ends |Witney Gazette, Oxford Mail Yes No Yes o
improve-paths-witney-lake-
Withev: Work carriod outt TS FriveRT OXTor o at.co-T
itney: Work carried out to ) ) witney-
24.10.25 y i Witney Gazette, Oxford Mail Yes No Yes kinews/25565246.witney
reduce local flood risk work-c_arned-reduce-local-
WOTK to Improve patns at fifDeFirwoxoramarcoT
25.10.25 |Witney Lake and Country Park |Witney Gazette, Oxford Mail Yes No Yes _—
improve-paths-witney-lake-
R KiP-ana counciors AR TR T
26.10.25 |view progress at new Oxford Mail Yes No Yes kinews]. 25_‘:3'5908.2""’”“6\”
develonmeant mp-counciliors-view-
Trees removed from river to
29.10.25 Witney Gazette Yes No Yes Physical

reduce flood risk

A weekly roundup of social media activity is sent to the Council’s press contacts. Individual Press Releases will still be issued for key Council news.



Agenda Item 9b

By virtue of the Public Bodies (Admission to Meetings) Act 1960 s1

Document is Restricted

Page 16



Agenda Item 11

STRONGER COMMUNITIES COMMITTEE ‘b %Yﬂ[?fﬂ
Agenda Item: Youth Council Update

Meeting Date: Monday, 17 November 2025

Contact Officer: Admin Assistant — Communications & Engagement

The purpose of this report is to update the Committee on the Witney Youth Council.

Background

The Witney Youth Council was established in September 2024 with a group of 12 members.
Since its formation, the council has actively participated in town events, including the
Christmas Lights Switch-on and the Witney Carnival.

The primary purpose of the Witney Youth Council is to provide children and young people
with a collective voice that is heard by decision makers. By giving young people a voice, the
Witney Youth Council plays a vital role in shaping a more inclusive and responsive local
government, encouraging active participation, and developing key skills among Witney’s
young people.

Current Situation

New Members

Since September 2025, the Witney Youth Council has welcomed four new members. They are
very driven and have already contributed a lot of ideas.

Youth Council Meeting Notes — 215 October 2025

For the new members, officers held an informal introductory meeting. This involved
answering three questions to find common issues they would like to tackle and give them an
aim to work towards. Here is a summary of their responses:

e What do you like best about Witney?

Response: Youth Councillors frequently brought up the scenery (buildings), the wildlife, and
the peaceful atmosphere of Witney. They enjoyed the sense of community, the diversity, and
how accepting residents are. Some mentioned they appreciated the winter events such as the
Christmas Light Switch-On.

e What is the biggest issue facing young people in Witney?

Response: Youth Councillors emphasised the lack of activities and clubs to do after school
time for young people. They agreed that vaping was a large issue and very prevalent amongst

Page 20



young people their age. Mental health and bullying were also mentioned, both physical and
mental, as well as anti-social behaviour.

e What can the Witney Youth Council do to tackle these issues?

Response: Almost all Youth Councillors mentioned the need for a Youth Club, specifically for
secondary school aged young people. Some things the Youth Council discussed to hold were
charity fundraising work, car boot sales, cake sales, cultural days, raffles, hot chocolate stands,
as well as group visits to the Fire Station, Police Station, Hospital, Foodbanks, and local
Charities. They expressed they would like more frequent meetings and chances to ask other
young people in person what they would be interested in, as surveys can be dependent on
whether they are filled out or not.

Figure 1 Post It Notes from 21/10/25 - Youth Council Meeting

Officers explored these questions using coloured pens and post it notes and offered cakes
and sweets as an incentive to boost attendance. This led to ten members attending this
meeting - a significant improvement from the one member attending previously. The session
overall proved very successful in encouraging members to interact, share ideas, and express
their thoughts in writing.

Next Youth Council Meeting - 19" November 2025

The next three Youth Council Meetings will take place more frequently than others as
requested to keep motivation and attendance up (once a month), as well as increasing the
likelihood of identifying a clear project to take forward.

The following will be discussed in the next meeting:

e Youth Council Roles Refresh
¢ WhatsApp Youth Council Notifications
e First Project Plans

Page 21



Officers suggest the current official format of the Youth Council may not be conducive to
getting the best out of members and that the roles and terms of reference be reviewed. The
agreed TORs can be viewed here: Witney-Youth-Council-Terms-of-Reference.docx

Officers suggest the following amendments:
2. Membership

2.2 The term of Youth Council membership will be for 2 years (if a member wishes to serve
longer than this time the Town Council will review the request)

3. Youth Council Elected Roles

Officers suggest the roles are revised to:

e Chair/Vice Chair
e« Media Officer
e Treasurer

This simplification will help clarification of roles and responsibilities.
4. Meetings

With a regular attendance of 5 to 10 members, meetings often are unable to meet the current
guorum number of 7. To keep meetings productive and allow the youth councillors to achieve
their ideas, it is suggested that quorum is lowered to 4 (one third of members). Subsequently,
the terms of reference will need to be adjusted to represent this.

It is also proposed that meeting frequency requirements be made more flexible. Youth
councillors often face challenges attending meetings during exam periods and summer
holidays, while at other times, particularly when planning events, they express a desire for
more frequent sessions. Adjusting the schedule to reflect these seasonal needs would help
maintain engagement and support effective project planning.

Communicating through WhatsApp

Officers will be sending out a parental consent form to youth members to be contacted via
their mobile phones through WhatsApp as agreed in the last Stronger Communities meeting.

Page 22


https://view.officeapps.live.com/op/view.aspx?src=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.witney-tc.gov.uk%2Fwp-content%2Fuploads%2F2025%2F10%2FWitney-Youth-Council-Terms-of-Reference.docx&wdOrigin=BROWSELINK

As emails are frequently not responded to, WhatsApp provides a more familiar and accessible
means of contact for the youth councillors. It is important to note:

e This communication method is managed by the Communications and Engagement
Administrative Assistant as well as the Communications and Community Engagement
Officer using a work mobile. Best practice is to have two DBS checked adults in every
WhatsApp chat as you would at any gathering.

e Thisis not a group chat but a direct messaging system, ensuring privacy and protecting
confidential information. To not use WhatsApp to reply to individual young people —
but to switch to SMS instead — and then to only communicate information.

¢ Youth Councillors under the age of 13 cannot legally use WhatsApp as per their Terms
of Service (which can be found here: www.whatsapp.com/legal/terms-of-service).

e Parents and Guardians of youth councillors under 18 are informed of the above
information in line with the WhatsApp terms of engagement.

Youth Council Projects

Plans for the High Sheriff’s Big Breakfast Conversations will not proceed due to focus on
other areas of interest, and the Youth Council is unable to meet the November deadline.

The Youth-led Culture Day is a significant project from previous meetings that was also
brought up again as an option. It is recommended that first they plan a small and simple
project such as a raffle stall or cake sale for their first project. The next meeting will be to
decide on this.

Remembrance Day

The Witney Youth Council were also in attendance at the Remembrance Day service. It was
wonderful to see the Chair and Vice-Chair laying a wreath and representing the young people
of Witney.

Christmas Lights Switch-on Events

The Communications & Community Engagement Officer intends to ask the Youth Council to
assist in welcoming Be Free Young Carers on the evening in the Gallery Room at the Corn
Exchange.

Daily Slides and End of Term Newsletters

News of the Witney Youth Council and Witney Town Council relating to young residents of
Witney has begun to be sent to local secondary schools.

Page 23


http://www.whatsapp.com/legal/terms-of-service

Impact Assessments

The Town Council has a duty to consider the effects of its decisions, functions and activities
on equality, biodiversity, and crime & disorder. Consideration should also be given to effects
on the environment, given the Council’s Climate Emergency declaration in 2019.

a) Equality — Witney Youth Council inherently tackles inequality by giving a voice and a
platform to young people, often apart of diverse communities. Many issues youth
councillors want to tackle involve discrimination.

b) Biodiversity — The Youth Council has begun to show interest in climate initiatives, although
specific plans to help Witney’s green spaces have not yet been discussed.

c) Crime & Disorder — Helping young people feel listened to through avenues such as a Youth
Council can help reduce anti-social behaviour and crime by Young People through
promoting mental health awareness, peer-led activities/initiatives, and improving the
reputation of young people in Witney.

d) Environment & Climate Emergency —When Witney Youth Council buy items for their
projects, we have prioritised sustainability and the use of eco-friendly materials.

Risk
In decision making Councillors should give consideration to any risks to the Council and any

action it can take to limit or negate its liability.

Officers recognise the potential risks associated with using WhatsApp and have developed a
consent form that details the data collection and usage when employing third-party
applications.

Youth Councillors and their guardians retain the right to refuse the use of WhatsApp and can
remain to communicate exclusively through email.

Social Value

Social value is the positive change the Council creates in the local community within which it
operates.

> Organisations and local groups able to gather valuable insights on the perspectives and
needs of young people in Witney through a small, representative sample.

> Young residents of Witney feel heard and that their voice can make an impact.

Financial implications

> Officers’ working time
> Additional internal hall hire and costs relating to Corn Exchange bookings for the Youth
Council meetings.

Page 24



Recommendations

Members are invited to note the report and consider the following:

1. Consider the changes to the Youth Council roles and terms of reference.

Page 25



Agenda Item 12

STRONGER COMMUNITIES COMMITTEE ” WITNEY

Y TOWN COUNCIL

Agenda Item: Youth Services
Meeting Date: Monday, 17 November 2025
Contact Officer: Deputy Town Clerk

The purpose of this report is to provide Members with an update on Youth Services being
funded by the Town Council in 2025/26 and to consider any amendments for the 2026/27
budget.

Background

Youth Services Grant

In 2025, the Council re-introduced a youth services grant scheme with a budget of £20,000
under the oversight of this Committee, with all grant awards decided on by the Policy,
Governance & Finance Committee.

Members will recall that the scheme funded eight organisations from this budget, with a
further three supported from the discretionary grants fund, demonstrating both a clear need
and a willingness from local groups to expand their provision. Awarded amounts differed from
those requested and were allocated based on how well applications met the established
criteria.

Officers understand that it is the Committee’s intention for this scheme to continue in the
forthcoming fiscal year.

Other Youth Services

In addition, the Council continued to fund The Station Detached Youth Service (£18,000),
which presented its plans for the new year to the previous meeting. These plans were
approved, subject to a revised Service Level Agreement (Minute No. SC 531 refers).

Home-Start Oxford requested £12,000 in 2025 from a budget of £11,000, with the full £11,000
awarded. A letter of thanks from September is included as Appendix A.

The Council also supported APCAM mental health drop-in sessions and We Game activities at
the Corn Exchange throughout the year, at a total cost of £3,600. Feedback on these sessions

is still awaited.

Members are invited to consider the continuation of these services and make
recommendations accordingly.

Page 26



Current Situation

Based on the above, the following budgets are proposed for the 2026/27 fiscal year.

Witney Youth Services Grant Fund £20,000
The Station Detached Youth Service £28,500
Home Start Oxford £12,000
APCAM (School Holiday Drop-in Sessions) £ 2,800*
APCAM We Game Sessions £ 1,200*
Total of Direct Youth Services funding £64,500

*Based on an increase from the 2025/26 figures

Members should note that additional services for young people are provided by the Town
Council through other initiatives, including the annual Advent Fayre and OPA Play Day.

Impact Assessments

The Town Council has a duty to consider the effects of its decisions, functions and activities

on equality, biodiversity, and crime & disorder. Consideration should also be given to effects

on the environment, given the Council’s Climate Emergency declaration in 2019.

a)

b)

d)

Equality — Access to well-funded, quality services can help mitigate the effects of social
inequality. Ensuring that resources are directed toward the communities and individuals
who need them most is a crucial step toward improving outcomes for young people,
fostering social mobility, and promoting a more just and equal society.

Biodiversity — no direct impact from the contents of this report.

Crime & Disorder —By offering young people the tools, opportunities, and support they
need to thrive, youth services reduce the likelihood that they will engage in criminal
behaviour, contribute to social disorder, or face long-term negative outcomes. These
services not only benefit individuals but also promote the well-being and safety of entire
communities.

Environment & Climate Emergency — no direct impact from the contents of this report.

Risk

In decision making Councillors should give consideration to any risks to the Council and any

action it can take to limit or negate its liability.

>

>

Town and Parish Councils have no statutory duty to provide youth services. There is a
reputational risk residents will see further funding as additional taxation. This needs to be
balanced against the social value to the community.

These are large sums of money, so it is critical that funding is allocated strategically,
managed with transparency, and coupled with ongoing evaluation and adaptation to
ensure the services provided are effective, inclusive, and sustainable.

Page 27



Social Value

Social value is the positive change the Council creates in the local community within which it
operates.

Investment in youth services can reduce the risk of negative outcomes, such as involvement
in crime, substance abuse, or mental health crises. By offering structured activities and
support systems, these programs help prevent young people from falling into harmful
behaviours and provide alternatives to risky or destructive paths.

Funding youth services is a critical investment in the future of individuals and communities. It
creates long-term social value by addressing the needs of young people, promoting positive
development, reducing social inequalities, and fostering a more resilient and cohesive society.
The benefits are far-reaching, influencing everything from personal well-being and mental
health to economic stability and societal growth.

Financial implications

» The full implications can be seen in the contents of the report.

» The Council retains separate budget lines for the Youth Services Grant (4169/408),
Detached Youth Service (4172/408), and Home-Start Oxford (4173/408).

» If the Committee were to recommend further APCAM sessions in the new year this would
need to be requested to the Policy, Governance & Finance Committee as to where this
may be funded from.

Recommendations
Members are invited to note the report and recommend to the Policy, Governance & Finance

Committee,

1. The level of Town Council spending on Youth Services in 2026/27, including:

e Retaining a budget Ring-fencing £28,500 and £12,000 for The Station Detached Youth
Project and Home Start Oxford respectively.

o Whether the Council should budget for further APCAM mental health drop-in sessions
throughout the year, or during school holidays, or at all.

2. To note the Council has the General Power of Competence which allows it to fund for the
above.

Page 28



www.homestartoxford.org.uk
01865 649003

Home-Start Oxford Appendi D
26 Kingfisher Green
Oxford, 0X4 7BX ﬂ

Email: admin@homestartoxford.org.uk S

Oxford

Witney Town Council
By email

10*" September 2025
Dear Councillors,
Thank you for giving young children the foundations they need to thrive.

The earliest years of a child’s life set the trajectories for their future happiness, health and
educational attainment. By helping struggling families with under-5s you are changing life
outcomes.

On behalf of all the children and families we support, our volunteers, staff, and trustees we
would like to thank you for making a difference through your support of our group work in
Witney.

One mum’srecent feedback about attending our Puddle Jumpers group in Witney will give you
a sense of how much she and her daughter have enjoyed attending this group.

“My daughter absolutely loves Puddle Jumpers. As soon as we get into the room, she just leaves
me! It feels like such a safe place, | know that she can go off and play and | can keep an eye on
her but also chat with the other mums in the group. And I’'ve made friends from the group too,
which is really nice. We’ve got a little group going now, and all the kids are within four months of
each other in terms of age, so it’s really nice. It’s a really friendly group.”

We are able to continue to run these important groups because of supporters like Witney Town
Council. Thank you.

Yours sincerely

<

X, B,

Katharine Barber
CEO, Home-Start Oxford

Charity registration no. 1108612
Home-Start Oxford is a company limited by guarantee
[England] registration no. 5375011

Page 29


mailto:admin@homestartoxford.org.uk
http://www.homestartoxford.org.uk/

Agenda Iltem 13

STRONGER COMMUNITIES COMMITTEE ﬂ WITNEY

Y TOWN COUNCIL

Agenda Item: Flag Flying Policy Review
Meeting Date: Monday, 17 November 2025
Contact Officer: Deputy Town Clerk

The purpose of this report is to invite Members to consider and recommend approval of a
revised Flag Flying Policy for the Town Council.

Background

At the meeting of the Committee on 15 September 2025 under minute no. SC521, it was
resolved:

1. That, the anniversary of the Battle of Britain be added to the Council flag flying
calendar and,

2. That, Officers draft an updated flag flying policy for consideration at the meeting of
the Committee on 17 November and for it to be widely advertised upon adoption.

Current Situation

Officers have reviewed the Town Council’s Flag Flying Policy, and the revised version is
attached as Appendix A. A calendar of flag flying occasions is attached as Appendix B.

The updated policy expands on the purpose of flag flying and sets out all currently agreed
dates and flags flown by the Town Council. It is designed to reflect current practice while
allowing for future flexibility.

There is potential to extend the occasions on which the Union Flag is flown to include events
such as Oxfordshire Day, Trafalgar Day, and Europe Day, in line with approaches taken by
other councils. Additional recommendations may arise from the National Pride Working Party
following its meeting on 13 November 2025.

At the time of writing, the Council’s England flag has become significantly discoloured. The
Committee may wish to allocate a small budget for its replacement while also considering the

purchase of an Oxfordshire flag for local occasions.

Finally, the policy will require review once advertising flags are installed on the side of the
Corn Exchange building, in accordance with Resolution H628 (11 November 2024).

Page 30



Impact Assessments

The Town Council has a duty to consider the effects of its decisions, functions and activities
on equality, biodiversity, and crime & disorder. Consideration should also be given to effects
on the environment, given the Council’s Climate Emergency declaration in 2019.

a) Equality —By including flags for different cultural and civic occasions, the Council helps all
groups feel valued, while clear guidance ensures flags are displayed consistently and
respectfully, promoting inclusivity and fairness.

b) Crime & Disorder — The council flag-flying policy is likely to have a neutral to positive
impact on crime and disorder. By clearly defining which flags are flown, when, and how,
within a robust policy helps prevent misuse of flags that could provoke tension or conflict.

¢) Environment & Climate Emergency — no direct implications.

Risk
In decision making Councillors should give consideration to any risks to the Council and any

action it can take to limit or negate its liability.

» Flags may only be flown in line with planning legislation.

> Potential public criticism depending on the nature of the policy.

Social Value
Social value is the positive change the Council creates in the local community within which it

operates.

The council flag-flying policy promotes civic pride, community identity, and a sense of
belonging by marking national, royal, and local events. It supports inclusivity and social
cohesion by recognising diverse cultural and commemorative occasions, while clear guidance
ensures flags are displayed consistently and respectfully.

Financial implications

» Cost of an Oxfordshire Flag — approximately £150-300
» Replacement England Flag - £100-150

Recommendations
Members are invited to note the report and:

1. Consider the revised flag flying policy and recommend to the Policy, Governance &
Finance Committee accordingly.
2. Consider the purchase of Oxfordshire and England flags from this year or the next.

Page 31



WITNEY

TOWN COUNCIL

Flag-Flying Policy
1.

Appendix A

Introduction

This Policy sets out Witney Town Council’s approach to the flying of flags.

The Town Council flies flags to demonstrate allegiance, respect, celebration, and
support for causes or occasions that reflect the values and identity of Witney in the
local, national, and international communities.

2.

3.

General Information

Witney Town Council owns one designated flagpole, located on top of the Town
Hall, Market Square opposite the Buttercross.

Flags may only be flown from the above flagpole. No other Town Council-owned
buildings or facilities are authorised for flag flying.

The Witney Coat of Arms will be flown year-round at the Town Hall unless another
flag is raised in its place.

Flags may be displayed in the Council’s reception window and on the balcony at
the Corn Exchange to highlight national events and occasions.

A designated Town Council officer will raise the appropriate flag before 10:00 a.m.
on recognised flag-flying days. Flags will normally remain in place until the
following morning unless otherwise specified.

When a recognised flag-flying day falls on a weekend, the flag will be raised before
5:00 p.m. on the preceding Friday and lowered before 10:00 a.m. on the following
Monday, unless otherwise directed.

The Town Council may arrange flag-flying ceremonies for any flag raising where
appropriate and will publicise these in advance.

Flags will not be flown during periods of high winds or adverse weather, particularly
when wind speeds are expected to exceed forty mph.

Flag may only be flown at the Town Hall by resolution of the Town Council and any
relevant planning legislation — please see section 6. Requests to fly other flags.

Union Flag Flying Days

The Union Flag will be flown at Witney Town Hall in accordance with national flag-
flying days published on www.gov.uk to preserve the significance of these occasions.

V2 | November 2025

Page 32


https://www.gov.uk/guidance/designated-days-for-union-flag-flying

In addition, the Union Flag will be flown on the following commemorative days:

e Armistice Day 11 November
« Battle of Britain Day 15 September

The St George’s Flag will be flown on:
o St George’s Day 23 April

The Town Clerk (or their representative), in consultation with the Leader of the Council,
has discretion to fly the Union Flag or St George’s Flag on other occasions, including:

e To celebrate or support significant national (England) or local sporting events.

e In recognition of a Royal Visit (in consultation with the Lord-Lieutenant).

« To mark an event of success or importance to the town including an RAF Brize
Norton Freedom Parade.

« On formal civic occasions, where appropriate.

4. Flying the Union Flag at Half-Mast

In line with guidance from the College of Arms, the Union Flag will be flown at half-
mast in the following circumstances:

e From the announcement of the death of the Sovereign (H.M The King) until the
funeral.

e On the death or funeral of a member or near relative of the Royal Family (see
below):

H.M The Queen

H.R.H The Prince of Wales
H.R.H The Princess of Wales
H.R.H The Princess Royal

H.R.H The Duke of Edinburgh
H.R.H The Duchess of Edinburgh

o O O O O O

e On the death or funeral of a current or former Prime Minister of the United
Kingdom.

« On any other occasion commanded by the Sovereign or the Department for
Culture, Media, and Sport (DCMS).

Witney Town Council may fly the Town flag at half-mast to mark local losses or
commemorations as follows:

e On the death or funeral of a serving Town Councillor or Member of Parliament.

Half-mast means the flag is positioned two-thirds up the flagpole, leaving at least the
height of the flag between the top of the flag and the top of the pole.

V2 | November 2025

Page 33



When raising or lowering a flag to half-mast, it should first be hoisted to the top of the
flagpole before being lowered. When removed, it should again be raised to the top
before being fully lowered.

If a flag-flying day coincides with a period of mourning, flags will normally be flown at
full-mast unless a special command dictates otherwise.

5. Other Flags

Following Council resolutions, Witney Town Council also fly’s the following flags from
the Town Hall throughout the year:

« Commonwealth Flag Second Monday in March (Commonwealth Day)
e United Nations Flag United Nations Day, 24 October

« Red Ensign Merchant Navy Day, 3 September

« Armed Forces Flag Armed Forces Day, last Saturday in June

« NHS Flag NHS Anniversary Day, 5 July

« Rainbow Flag Witney Pride Day (usually last Saturday in May)
« Refugee Nation Flag World Refugee Day, 20 June

e« Twinned Town Flags When required (as appropriate)

6. Requests to Fly Other Flags

Witney Town Council welcomes engagement from the community and will consider
requests to fly or display other flags in line with the following:

1. Requests must be submitted in writing to the Council and approved by the relevant
Committee and/or Full Council through a formal resolution. Please note, many flags
require planning consent from the local Planning Authority to fly.

2. The Council reserves the right to refuse any request associated with political
parties, groups, or organisations, or any request that may bring the Council into
disrepute. The Council must remain politically neutral, and its decision is final.

3. The Council will not purchase flags on behalf of third parties. Successful applicants
may provide their own flag to the specified size, and donations will be
acknowledged in Council minutes.

4. The Council will store donated flags safely but cannot accept responsibility for
wear, damage, or replacement.

5. Flags will normally be displayed for a single day corresponding with the relevant
campaign or commemoration, subject to staffing availability.

7. Reference

The complete Witney Town Council Flag Flying Policy, including the official list of
recognised flags and flag-flying dates, is attached as Appendix A.

8. Review

This policy will be reviewed every two years or sooner if required by legislative or
strategic changes.

V2 | November 2025

Page 34



Adopted: XXXXX (XXXX) Review Date:
XXXX

V2 | November 2025

Page 35



Witney Town Council

Flag Flying Calendar for Events, Campaigns & Commemorations

Date Occasion Flag/Lighting Agreed Donated/Dictated by
15t Mon in March Commonwealth Day Commonwealth Flag n/a Council

Union Flag UK Gov Buildings
9 April His Majesty’s Wedding Anniversary Union Flag n/a UK Gov Buildings
23 April St George’s Day St George’s Flag n/a Council

Union Flag UK Gov Buildings
6 May Coronation Day Union Flag n/a UK Gov Buildings

1t Sat in June

Oxford Pride
(Taken as Witney Pride weekend since 2021)

Rainbow Flag

C157 — Full Council - 08.04.19

P. Hicks

2nd Sat in June Official celebration of His Majesty’s birthday Union Flag n/a UK Gov Buildings
g 20 June World Refugee Day World Refugee Flag C126 - Full Council - 08.06.20 L. Ashbourne
cg 21 June Birthday, Prince of Wales Union Flag n/a UK Gov Buildings
8% End of June Armed Forces Day Armed Forces Flag n/a

17 July Birthday, Her Majesty The Queen Union Flag n/a UK Gov Buildings

3 September Merchant Navy Day Red Ensign C357 — Community Services - 17.07.18 B. Churchill

8 September His Majesty, The kings Accession Union Flag n/a UK Gov Buildings

15 September Battle of Britain Day Union Flag SC521 Stronger Communities —15.11.25 n/a

Remembrance Day Second Sunday in November Union Flag n/a UK Gov Buildings

11 November Armistice Day Union Flag n/a n/a

14 November Birthday, His Majesty The King Union Flag n/a UK Gov Buildings

The Union Flag will also be flown:

The day of the opening of a Session of the Houses of Parliament by His Majesty (see note 3)

g xipuaddy



Agenda Iltem 14

Council Offices
Reply to: Environmental Protection Woodgreen,
Tel: 01993 861000 WITNEY

Email: ers@publicagroup.uk
q WEST OXFORDSHIRE
DISTRICT COUNCIL
Witney Town Council Ref: W/25/01366/ASB
Town Hall Date: 03/10/2025
Market Square
Witney
Oxon
OX28 6AG
Dear Sirs,

Statutory Consultation = Public Space Protection Order (PSPO) - Proposed
Prohibition of Pony and Trap use within the “restricted area” (A40 dual Carriageway
East/Westbound from Downs Road Bridge Witney to Asthall Roundabout Burford)

West Oxfordshire District Council received a request from Thames Valley Police to initiate a Public
Space Protection Order (PSPO) under Section 59 of the Anti-Social Behaviour Crime and Policing
Act 2014. This request is being made in response to reports of unauthorised pony and trap racing on
the A40 within the “restricted area” delineated in pink within Schedule of Land below. The Act
specifies that a local authority wishing to introduce a PSPO must consult with the OPCC and any
other relevant stakeholders.

Since 2020, Thames Valley Police have received 19 reports of pony and trap racing along this section
of the A40, primarily occurring on weekends. These races are typically unannounced, unregulated,
and pose serious public safety risks. This activity causes major disruption to the road network and
endangers both road users and the animals involved.

West Oxfordshire District Council is of the view that the introduction of a PSPO to the “Restricted
Area” to prohibit this specific activity within the highlighted location of the A40 meets the test. The
test outlined within the Act which is designed to be broad and focus on the impact anti-social
behaviour is having on victims and communities. A PSPO can be made by the Council if they are
satisfied on reasonable grounds that the activities carried out, or likely to be carried out, in a public

space:
* have had, or are likely to have, a detrimental effect on the quality of life of those in the locality;
e is, or is likely to be, persistent or continuing in nature;

s is, or is likely to be, unreasonable; and

* justifies the restrictions imposed.”

The Act specifies that a local authority wishing to introduce a PSPO must consult with the Police and
Crime Commissioner and other interested parties. The Council has considered the rights and
freedoms enshrined in the European Convention on Human Rights, in particular Article 10 (freedom
of expression) and Article | | (freedom of assembly and association). Having done so, the Council is

Page 37



satisfied that the restrictions to be implemented by this Order on those rights and freedoms are
lawful, reasonable, and proportionate.

The duration of a Public Space Protection Order can last up to 3 years but does have the ability to
be extended or varied before the original Order is due to expire.

Please see below a summary of pony and trap related police reports which have occurred between
2020 and 2025. These reports relate to |18 separate incidences of racing, selling of horses and
gambling on horses prior and in between races

* Count of Case File Number

ASB - Community 2
ASB - Personal

Road Related Incident 16
Grand Total 19

The consultation period for the proposed PSPO will run from 10th October 2025 until 21st
November 2025. Should you require any further information regarding this consultation or to put
your views forward, please do not hesitate to contact me directly.

Yours Faithfully,

Jennifer Bain
Environmental Protection Officer

Page 38



"n") 420056 208412

PROPOSED SCHEDULE OF LAND
.‘(-/ Y % : “'Y e 14 Mn ,‘,d o ‘* ‘,:4 i
PNl AN YR ""P‘" g “"‘.“‘- ‘ ‘f.t.',,“,' ,_.'u-'
e '_: . e\.'e..u‘-». B = |

NS\

Lower Faid o
Farm

=) 17
! Mmsurf&
Lovell_,

/
L h;r’rw He !
T

~_.M r(me s P)

e - Wiiney Laves |
o | Golt Conesm

‘f 2 Gawve Taree
Wed ¥ Tottuges

J
-
- ———
1 Sean
s

v
.4\
;
!
|
;
:
\
i@
!
i
7
:

et i‘l-
,1- - -
‘l Soatwiy \
3 | Prantat de |
r Fo-u J i s
& hm . {

L4 ] >
*Restricted area delineated in pink - A40 dual Carriageway East/Westbound at Downs Road Bridge Witney to Asthall Roundabout Burford

Clo"tdjhn.. . ’ “, 1
i
¥
e
t

\ ;,"s' Rocay

Page 39



Agenda Iltem 16

STRONGER COMMUNITIES COMMITTEE ﬂ WITNEY

Y TOWN COUNCIL

Agenda Item: Vehicle Activated Signs (VAS)
Meeting Date: Monday, 17 November 2025
Contact Officer: Deputy Town Clerk

The purpose of this report is to seek Members’ consideration of a potential investment in
speed awareness signs for Witney.

Background

At the meeting of the Witney Traffic Advisory Committee held on 23 September 2025, a
resident of Woodstock Road raised concerns regarding vehicle speeds along the road. The
possibility of installing speed awareness signs and possible re-routing measures were
discussed.

The Committee was advised that the Community Speedwatch team had undertaken two
surveys in the area and that wider transport plans were in place, including the proposed
reclassification of the A4095 and anticipated improvement measures associated with the
Witney Transport Assessment and the opening of the Shores Green Slip Road. It was also
agreed that a request should be made to Thames Valley Police for roadside speed monitoring.
(Minute No. T103 refers.)

Current Situation

Correspondence has been received from Oxfordshire County Council officers outlining the
installation and role of Parish/Town Council’s for this community infrastructure below.

VAS & SID

“Regarding your request for information on vehicle activated signs there are 2 types. A VAS is
a fixed sign which will typically display the speed limit and a message saying, “slow down”. A
speed indicator device — SID will display vehicle speeds.

We work with PC's in advising on and approving SID & VAS sign locations. SID's are supposed
to be mobile signs, moved to varying locations to increase their effectiveness. Solar power or
battery options are pretty good with battery ones being easiest to relocate.

They are funded and maintained by the PC — being PC assets but OCC approve locations. They
can be mounted on lamp columns or other suitable traffic signposts subject to OCC approval.
Bespoke posts at agreed locations can be provided if no suitable alternative is available subject
to funding.

Page 40



If the PC wish to commission an external contractor to provide suitable posts at OCC agreed
locations, please see the following,

https://www.oxfordshire.qgov.uk/business/licences-and-permits/road-opening-licence

If the PC contractor has the appropriate licenses and permissions etc then shouldn’t be a
problem. However, depending on our signing budget, we have in the past provided and
erected posts on behalf of the PC.”

Examples of SID/VAS signs

The installation of fixed and mobile speed awareness signs has been discussed several times
by the Traffic Advisory Committee and Council Members in recent years. The Committee is
invited to decide whether this infrastructure should be earmarked for purchase by the Town
Council now or in the future and, if so, to explore potential funding options.

The County Council have provided details of recommended suppliers who they regularly work
with.

Impact Assessments

The Town Council has a duty to consider the effects of its decisions, functions and activities
on equality, biodiversity, and crime & disorder. Consideration should also be given to effects
on the environment, given the Council’s Climate Emergency declaration in 2019.

a) Equality — Improved road safety benefits all residents, particularly vulnerable groups such
as children, older people, and those with disabilities who may be more at risk from
speeding traffic. To maximise inclusivity, sign placement should consider areas with
schools, care homes, and pedestrian routes to ensure all groups benefit equally.

b) Crime & Disorder — The purchase of fixed and mobile speed awareness signs is likely to
have a positive impact on crime and disorder by deterring speeding and promoting safer
driving behaviour.

c) Environment & Climate Emergency — Fixed and mobile speed awareness signs may
encourage slower, smoother driving which could reduce emissions and noise pollution.

Page 41


https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.oxfordshire.gov.uk%2Fbusiness%2Flicences-and-permits%2Froad-opening-licence&data=05%7C02%7Cadam.clapton%40witney-tc.gov.uk%7C3d7ecb074bda46cd85c108de130c051b%7C1336d10a139b449dad614710c039c5c1%7C0%7C0%7C638969139671743432%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=IGBu3KjoWSJ1vES5Yd2%2B1CR%2BUMTZhBdMm3Vv8qZMTwg%3D&reserved=0

Risk

In decision making Councillors should give consideration to any risks to the Council and any
action it can take to limit or negate its liability.

> The purchase of fixed and mobile speed awareness signs carries risks relating to cost,
maintenance, and public expectations.

> Financial and operational risks include installation, upkeep, compliance with highways
regulations, and potential vandalism or equipment failure.

> Reputational risk may occur if the signs are perceived as ineffective or if the Town Council
is seen as responsible for speed enforcement, potentially leading to liability concerns in
the event of accidents.

> These risks could be managed through coordination with Oxfordshire County Council &
Thames Valley Police, clear communication with residents, and budgeting for ongoing
maintenance to ensure the equipment remains effective.

Social Value

Social value is the positive change the Council creates in the local community within which it
operates.

Purchasing fixed and mobile speed awareness signs delivers social value by improving road
safety, reducing speeding, and increasing residents’ sense of security. The signs encourage
responsible driving, support walking and cycling, and show the Council’s commitment to
community wellbeing and responsiveness to local concerns.

Financial implications

» The town council has no current budget for this infrastructure.

> Basic fixed SIDs are priced from approximately £2,250 (net) and increase in price
depending on the type of sign and electric connection (solar panels etc.) with optional
extras.

Recommendations

Members are invited to note the report and:

1. Consider whether the Town Council should invest in the equipment and recommend
allocating a budget for the 2026-27 fiscal year, if appropriate [ Further detailed quotes can
be provided to the Policy, Governance & Finance Committee on 24 November].

Page 42



Agenda Iltem 17

STRONGER COMMUNITIES COMMITTEE WITNEY
Agenda Item: Community Litter Picking Equipment

Meeting Date: Monday, 17 November 2025

Contact Officer: Deputy Town Clerk

This report seeks Members’ consideration for the future purchase of community litter-picking
station(s) to support environmental initiatives in Witney.

Background

Officers have been advised that some town councils have introduced lockable town centre
cabinets stocked with litter-picking equipment, allowing residents to access and use the
equipment for community clean-up activities during weekends.

Current Situation

The following information has been researched by the Administrative Support Assistant —
Communities & Planning, relating to one area where community litter-picking initiatives are
in place:

e There are several active volunteer litter-picking groups operating in Swanage. For
example, the “Beach Buddies” meet on Sundays at 9 a.m. and Tuesdays at 6 p.m.

e The Town Council’s minutes refer to a “2-Minute Beach Clean Board” located on the
beach and note that volunteers utilise a beach hut for the storage of equipment.

No clear references were found to the use of lockable cabinets in the town centre containing
litter-picking kits for community teams. The available reports primarily focus on beach and
coastal clean-up activities rather than a town-centre cabinet hire or loan scheme.

The concept remains plausible, however, and a similar model could be considered for use in
local streets or parks rather than a beach environment. Information on a potential supplier is
provided below.




A brochure from the above company is attached as confidential Appendix A - one of the
products listed has yet to be publicly advertised.

It should be noted that the Council has a supply of litter picking equipment which is advertised
periodically throughout the year and available to collect from the Town Hall during the
working week. This equipment has been made use of, but the Council is not aware of any
organised litter picking groups —however, the provision of the stations may enable more.

If the Committee is agreeable, the stations should be at Council facilities open during the
weekends.

Impact Assessments

The Town Council has a duty to consider the effects of its decisions, functions and activities
on equality, biodiversity, and crime & disorder. Consideration should also be given to effects
on the environment, given the Council’s Climate Emergency declaration in 2019.

a) Equality — The purchase of a community litter-picking board provides an inclusive and
accessible opportunity for all residents to take part in improving their local environment.
By ensuring the board’s location, design, and equipment are accessible to people of all
ages and abilities, and by using inclusive language and imagery, the Council could promote
equal participation.

b) Crime & Disorder — A community litter-picking board can positively impact crime and
disorder by encouraging ownership, and respect for public spaces. Cleaner, well-used
environments deter antisocial behaviour and encourage community presence.

¢) Environment & Climate Emergency — Providing a litter-picking board and equipment
encourages residents to remove litter, reducing pollution, protecting wildlife, and
improving local biodiversity. While the board and equipment have a minor environmental
footprint, the initiative promotes sustainable behaviour and contributes to cleaner,
healthier, and more environmentally responsible public spaces.

Risk
In decision making Councillors should give consideration to any risks to the Council and any
action it can take to limit or negate its liability.

> Providing a litter-picking board and equipment carries some risk, including potential
injuries from use or slips, as well as loss, damage, or misuse of equipment. These risks can
be managed through safety instructions, age-appropriate and well-maintained tools,
regular monitoring, and appropriate insurance, ensuring the scheme remains safe while
supporting community engagement and environmental improvement.

> The installation and promotion of the signs could be perceived negatively, suggesting the
Council is shifting responsibility onto the public to perform tasks typically managed by
Council staff, who already maintain services such as bin emptying and litter picking seven
days a week.

Page 44



Social Value

Social value is the positive change the Council creates in the local community within which it
operates.

A community litter-picking boards deliver social value by encouraging residents to take pride
in their surroundings and actively care for shared spaces. Making equipment easily accessible
promotes volunteering, civic responsibility, and inclusion while improving the appearance
and perception of the town. The initiative also supports health and wellbeing through outdoor
activity and social interaction, creating cleaner, safer, and more connected communities.

Financial implications

» Options range from £150 — 500 each (please see brochure for details).
» Litter picking boards could be funded in the current year from the Infrastructure EMR or
could be submitted as a growth item in the 2026-27 budget.

Recommendations

Members are invited to note the report and:

1. Consider whether the Council should purchase this equipment (or similar), how many, and
where for and,

2. If yes, whether this is considered as a growth item in the 2026-27 budget or funded in the
current financial year.

Page 45



Appendix
By virtue of the Public Bodies (Admission to Meetings) Act 1960 s1 PP

Document is Restricted

Page 46



Agenda Iltem 18

By virtue of the Public Bodies (Admission to Meetings) Act 1960 s1

Document is Restricted

Page 57



Evaluation Only. Created with Aspose.PDF. Copyright 2002-2022 Aspose Pty Ltd.

Appendix

[ ‘A 'F\‘Vl '_-1"!' ‘_I

W b S
) (W
“'k')'.\} "

biing VA
\‘ \v'k\‘. \‘ }‘
l'

Wy e
{ 'I‘ A L ‘.
! {

i '

Page 58



Appendix

e Y ]
FGL
."f & P
" 'I _.i: ‘
o - al [T [T 450x450x450mm
ﬁ . gt dd C30 Concrete
. Foundation
e
L | 4 f
= 450 =

FOUNDATION DETAILS

Page 59




Appendix
By virtue of the Public Bodies (Admission to Meetings) Act 1960 s1 PP

Document is Restricted

Page 60



Agenda Item 19

STRONGER COMMUNITIES COMMITTEE ﬂ WITNEY

Y TOWN COUNCIL

Agenda Item: Third-Party Events Report
Meeting Date: Monday, 17 November 2025
Contact Officer: Venue & Events Officer

The purpose of this report is to update members on the Third-Party Events that have taken
place on WTC land over the summer of 2025. This report comments on the comprehensive
feedback report provided by Witney Music Festival.

Background

Witney Town Council facilitates a number of events throughout the year on council managed
land such as The Leys, Burwell Recreation Ground and West Witney Playing Fields. Officers
work with the organisers of these events to review their event plans to ensure; health and
safety, licensing and legal compliance, protection from damage to our ground (through
measures to limit damage and holding damage deposits) and to obtain their specific
requirements for the grounds team to facilitate such as removing bollards for vehicle access
etc.

Witney Town Council is also a partner of some of these events, including Witney Music
Festival. Officers work in collaboration with the partner organisations by providing
promotional support to help maximise the attendance of the event and to showcase the
partnership between the council and the organisation.

Current Situation
Witney Music Festival (WMF)

Following a request from members at the previous meeting; Witney Music Festival have
provided a comprehensive report providing feedback on this year’s festival and looking ahead
at plans for improvement going forward. The report includes key statistics from 2025, outlines
how the festival met the partnership agreement obligations and planned improvements
(including organisational structure, marketing and community engagement, potential grant
sources etc.).

Thursday Night Partial Opening

The report also outlines the potential to explore opening the dance tent on the Thursday night
to host a comedy evening. This proposal will help the festival increase footfall and income on

Page 62



an evening they already occupy the field. Officers view this as potentially a strong move for
the festival, with minimal impact to the Town Council — with a few considerations below.

e Financial Potential — Opening partially a day early is common practice across the
festival industry to capitalise on the infrastructure already in place. Increased ticket
sales, food and drink sales will have a positive impact on the festival’s income. There
is a risk that the extra day will operate at a loss due to increased staffing costs,
however, that is to be considered by the festival before deciding to go ahead.

e Cultural variety — By adding a comedy evening to the program, it makes the festival a
multi-arts event, not just music focused. This will appeal to a different audience
demographic as the music festival, increasing the overall community reach of the
festival.

e Infrastructure — Whilst operating a day early would make the most of the
infrastructure in place, Officers would need to be satisfied that the Health and Safety
plan of the festival considers the risk of a partially opened site. For example, out of
bounds areas must be secured and the area opened to the public must be signed off
as safe before opening.

e Noise / Resident Disruption — Noise levels should remain low due to the nature of the
opening being just for comedy.

Officers are confident that this move will have a positive impact on the festival, without
impacting the council financially. If the period occupying The Leys remains the same, there
will be no additional subsidised let required to operate on the Thursday.

Partnership Agreement & Grant Funding

In the report provided, WMF outlined how they have met the obligations outlined in the
partnership agreement which WTC and WMF entered into in February 2023.

Officers have maintained a good professional relationship with WMF over the last few years,
working together to ensure a successful and safe event. Based on the 2025 event and the
report provided, officers have no operational reason to suggest amendments to the
partnership agreement and the grant amount that has been provided annually since 2023.

The annual grant outlined in the partnership agreement represents an investment in the local
economy and community wellbeing. The event attracts significant visitor numbers (locally and
nationally), generates income for local businesses, and enhances the town’s cultural offering.
It provides the local community with accessible top-quality entertainment, volunteering /
working opportunities, and a platform for local artists to perform alongside nationally
recognised names.

Page 63



Impact Assessments

The Town Council has a duty to consider the effects of its decisions, functions and activities

on equality, biodiversity, and crime & disorder. Consideration should also be given to effects

on the environment, given the Council’s Climate Emergency declaration in 2019.

a) Equality - All events should be equal and inclusive.

b) Biodiversity - see below — environment and climate.

c) Crime & Disorder - third party hirers should be including mitigation in their event plans.

d) Environment & Climate Emergency - The Compliance & Environment Officer will be

looking at third party hire, and the initiatives hirers should take in relation to these areas.

Risk

In decision making Councillors should give consideration to any risks to the Council and any

action it can take to limit or negate its liability.

The council already mitigates risk associated with working in partnership with WMF by

outlining conditions and obligations within the partnership agreement. These include,

requiring a mutually agreed safe event management plan ahead of the event each year and

WMF providing the council with a damage deposit at the point of booking.

Event Viability: Should WMF not be able to operate due to a lack of grant funding,
WTC are not able to replace the event internally due to the high costs and
organisational structure required, meaning the town would lose its only annual music
festival.

Misuse or mismanagement of funds: The festival organisers may not use the grant as
intended, leading to poor accountability or non-delivery of outcomes. However, the
likelihood of this risk is minimal and is mitigated by the partnership agreement itself,
the in-depth report provided by WMF as well as regular contact with Officers in the
planning phase of the event.

Economic Impact: The report outlines the positive impact the festival has on the local
economy. Withdrawing funding from the festival resulting in cancellation or scaling
back will remove this positive impact on local businesses.

Reputation: WTC and WMF are both publicly vocal about the partnership agreement
and the event is largely popular with residents. The council could face negative
publicity should the annual grant funding outlined be reduced or removed. Supporting
the festival also poses its own reputational risk such as noise complaints, antisocial
behaviour, litter etc. This risk is currently managed through thorough planning,
monitoring of noise levels, security in place to deal with anti-social behaviour and a
thorough clean up post-festival. Officers have not experienced litter being left on the
leys post-event over the last few years and ground maintenance issues have been
minimal with the risk managed by taking a damage deposit.

Page 64



Social Value

Witney Music Festival delivers strong social value to the town by celebrating local culture,
creativity, and community spirit. The event brings together residents of all ages to enjoy live
music, arts, and family-friendly entertainment in a safe and welcoming environment. It
provides a valuable platform for local musicians, performers, and traders to showcase their
talents and businesses, supporting the area’s creative economy.

Financial implications

» Witney Music Festival has received an annual grant of £10,000 since the partnership
agreement in 2023.

Recommendations

Members are invited to note the report and

1. Consider allowing the festival to partially open on the Thursday for a Comedy Night.
2. Consider recommending to the Policy, Governance & Finance Committee on the
allocation of the partnership grant for the sum of £10,000 for the 2026 event.

Appendices

A — Witney Music Festival Report for 2025
B — Income & Expenditure

C—WMF & WTC Partnership Agreement

Page 65



Witney Music Festival 2025

Every Groove One Festival

Annual Report to Withey Town Council

Contents Page
Executive Summary 2
Overview 2025 Event 3
Partnership Agreement Obligations 4
Planning for the Future 6
20" Anniversary Plans (2026) 7
Summary 7
Appendix 8

Page 66




Executive Summary

Witney Music Festival 2025 delivered a safe, professional event with zero medical incidents and
no community complaints, whilst attracting around 1000 visitors from outside Witney and
selling out all local accommodation. The festival recorded an £8k loss due to lower-than-
targeted attendance (3,312 vs. 4,500+ goal), reflecting industry-wide challenges that saw 72 UK
festivals cancelin 2024 and 204 closures since 2019.

Our Response: We have implemented comprehensive organisational improvements including
professional management systems, clear director accountability, weekly governance meetings,
and a Community Advisory Board launching November 2025. A bespoke festival management
platform (built in-house) now handles contracts, budgets, and scheduling—eliminating
previous communication gaps and cost controlissues.

20th Anniversary Plans: Enhanced marketing through various channels, and potential
Cotswolds Tourism membership, earlier ticket sales (November vs. Spring), and active grant
applications including the Sustainable Tourism grant. Infrastructure improvements planned
include covered bar areas, modernised food court, and enhanced family facilities—subject to
budget and sponsorship confirmation.

Partnership Obligations Fulfilled: We continue exceeding our four core commitments—
building cohesive communities (Tough To Talk mental health partnership), furthering youth
talent pathways (67% local artists), showcasing Witney for tourism (36% out-of-town visitors,
Muddy Stilettos feature), and supporting local businesses (sold-out accommodation, increased
town centre footfall).

The 2025 challenges have catalysed systematic improvements positioning us to return to
profitability whilst maintaining community accessibility. Combined with 20th anniversary
momentum and our strengthened Council relationship, WMF is well-placed to serve Witney for
the next 20 years.

Page 67 Page 2 of 10



Overview 2025 Event

Witney Music Festival held on the Leys on the 6™ & 7" June 2025 was successful in many
respects, however financially the Festival we made a small loss of £8k on the event due to the
attendance figures and consequential lack of bar sales.

We feel that this year was the smoothest run festival to date. This is a reflection on the
continued support of the Witney Town Council and their willingness to help wherever possible,
and the tight knit team we have at the Festival that continues to learn and evolve as we focus on
delivering the best possible event for the community. We were pleased to see many staff and
Councillors from the Town Council in attendance, and we hope they had an enjoyable festival.

Leading up to the event the Festival registered for VAT as suggested by the Council and has been
trading as such in the leadup to the Festival and will continue to do so.

Key Statistics
Attendance over the weekend: 3,312
Medical Incidents: 0

Security Incidents Summary:

- Ejections 4

- Responses 10 (3 for breaching the site parameter)

- Basic toxication issues 10 (security called, left of their own accord)
Bar Issues: VIP Area, football firm in VIP bar area - racial

slur used against a performer. Victim did not
want to escalate to the police.

Traffic Management/Highways incidents/issues: 0

- Noise complaints received: 0
- Resident complaints received: 0
- General complaints from non-ticket holders: 0

Key learnings

e We need to improve attendance through better promotion

e Review strategy for the Festival for the long term with next year being the 20" anniversary
of the Festival

e Review areas of cost saving in bar area

e Consider layout of the Festival to accommodate higher numbers

e Continue to look at more inclusivity in terms of acts, access & facilities

Page 68 Page 30f 10



Partnership Agreement Obligations

Witney music Festival and Witney Town Council have entered into a partnership agreement on
the 14" February 2023 detailing the following obligations of both parties to work together in
order to:

e Build a cohesive and inclusive community through music
e Further a talent pathway for the youth of Witney

e Showcase Witney for tourism

e Support Local businesses

This year has demonstrated how the festival continues to meet and exceed these obligations in
pursuit of building better communities through music.

Building a cohesive and inclusive community through music

This year we have seen a greater diversity in attendees both young and old, and with our
disability access platform we are continuing to ensure access is for all. We pride ourselves in a
varied mix of music which attracts a wide spectrum of attendees, something that will be our
brand as we move into the 20" year of the festival “Every groove one festival”. The introduction
of the dance stage has expanded our appeal which ensures the maximum draw to the broadest
scope of attendees. The safe environment we have created has encouraged a real family
environment which we continue to build on, and we are looking to work with The Station and The
Music & Arts Trust to invest in local talent and continue to provide opportunities. But nothing
speaks volumes more than comments from local residents, an extract of these can be found in
appendix 4

This year the festival partnered with Tough To Talk, a UK charity whose mission is to reduce
male suicide and break the stigma surrounding men’s issues and poor mental health. They
were present onsite to help highlight this big issue and reported some amazing conversations
with attendees of the festival. This is an example of the many ways the festival is trying to
deliver a cohesive and inclusive community and work with organisations that complement our
objective. The festival has incorporated a link to the Tough to Talk website on the festival site —
see appendix 5.

Further a talent pathway for the youth of withey

67% of artists at this year’s festival were from Witney with young artists such as “Violet Band”
that was formed after being inspired by attending the festival in previous years. Local artists
who have played at the festival and gone on to bigger things either as a band or individually are:

e Dolly Mavis (also famous for snubbing the vice president of the US this year)

e Danny Mellin (Touring the UK)

e South Arcade (just signed to Atlantic Records in the US)

e Genevieve Miles (Touring the UK)

o Twisted State of Mind (individuals touring Europe as session musicians playing the likes
of the Albert Hall)

e The Mezz (Touring the UK)

Page 69 Page 4 of 10



As you can see the festival has and continue to promote young artists, many of whom have gone
on to greater things. An extract of comments from some of the bands that played this year can
be found in appendix 3

Showcase Witney for tourism

Of the 3,312 people that attended the festival this year 36% 1,192 came from outside of witney,
from as far north as York and as far south as Southampton, so the festival really attracts people
from far and wide to the festival. This is supported by the fact you cannot get a hotel room,
guest house or B&B in witney during the festival as they get sold out to people travelling to
Witney to attend the festival. Indeed, the word about the festival is spreading including a
citation in a Muddy Stilettos article about reasons to come to Witney (see attached article and
appendix 1) which specifically mentions the Witney Music Festival in its opening paragraph.

Support Local Businesses.

Many local businesses benefit greatly from the festival. With so many people travelling from
outside witney to attend the festival, hotel rooms, guest houses and B&B’s are all sold out, and
bars and restaurants benefit from the increased activity in town before, during and after the
festival. The festivalis in the unique position that it is in such close proximity to the town centre,
and the town is inextricably linked with the festival so many view the visit to the festival an
opportunity to explore the town and all it has to offer. See comments below in the appendix
from a selection of the businesses approached for comment. This year saw in an influx of over
1,000 people for the festival from outside Witney, it is difficult to see how this has not benefitted
the town when viewed with such positive comments the festival has received, a sample of
which can be found in appendix 2

Page 70 Page 5 of 10



Planning For The Future - Organisational Improvements

Professional Management Systems

We have developed a comprehensive festival management platform (built in-house drawing on
film/TV production and event management experience) that manages contracts, budgets,
timelines, and rider approvals. This eliminates previous communication gaps and ensures
professional supplier relationships. All artists will now work under documented agreements
before appearing on promotional materials.

Governance Strengthening

Community Advisory Board: Launching November 2025, a board of 10-12 people will work
alongside our five directors, distributing workload sustainably whilst bringing specialised
expertise in accessibility, marketing, and community engagement.

School Partnerships: We are in discussions with Henry Box School and Wood Green School
about establishing WMF boards, actively engaging local secondary students in festival planning
and youth talent development.

Director Structure: Each director has clearly defined responsibilities:

e Eric: Bars (Hook Norton partnership), press relations, council liaison,
chair/spokesperson

e Jim: Operations (power, lighting, security, staging)

o Matt: VIP area, toilets, fencing, insurance

e Sam: Dance stage production, accessibility and sensory areas

e Stuart: Creative direction (booking acts, scheduling, fundraising, marketing)

Weekly Meetings: We have instituted weekly director meetings through to the festival with clear
agendas, documented decisions, and accountability tracking.

Recruitment Event

We are hosting a major recruitment and networking event on 18th November 2025 at Shaan
Restaurant to build our volunteer, supporter, and sponsor teams whilst identifying potential
Community Advisory Board members.

Page 71 Page 6 of 10



20th Anniversary Plans (2026)

Marketing & Community Engagement

Cotswolds Tourism: We are exploring membership with Cotswolds Tourism for regional
promotion and integration with broader destination marketing.

Visit Witney Event: We recently attended a Visit Witney event organised by Witney Chamber of
Commerce where the festival was regularly discussed positively. We came away with fresh
ideas and valuable local business contacts.

Grant Applications: Actively pursuing multiple funding opportunities including the Sustainable
Tourism grant for infrastructure improvements.

Enhanced Strategy: Earlier ticket sales (November 2025 launch), advance sponsorship
commitments, and 20th anniversary narrative as marketing momentum.

Infrastructure Enhancements (Budget Dependent), subject to final budget approval and
sponsorship commitments:

e Covered bar areas with seating

e Modernised food court with curated vendors

e Enhanced family facilities and wet weather provision
e Premium gin bar partnership

e Improved site aesthetics and lighting

Format Considerations

With 2026 being the 20™ anniversary of the festival we are looking at how we might be able to
enhance our commitment for inclusivity and building community by considering how we might
spread the scope of artists we might be able to showcase. One idea being considered is
extending the festival to a Thursday just for comedy in the dance tent plus Friday/Saturday as
usual. Financial modelling will determine optimal structure, with the anniversary year providing
opportunity for thoughtful evolution.

Summary

The festival will be celebrating its 20" year in 2026 and hope to build on the success to date and
re-launch ourselves to underpin the objectives we have committed to as part of the partnership
agreement with Witney Town Council. We are conscious of our responsibility as a partner of
Witney Town Council and the obligations we have signed up for. We believe we have exceed
expectations of this agreement to date, however, we are not content with past wins, we aim for
better results for the Witney Music Festival that benefit the town, the community and justify the
Town Councils continued partnership with an event that helps showcase the best Witney has to
offer to people all over the UK.

Page 72 Page 7 of 10



APPENDIX

Appendix 1

Extract from Muddy Stillettos talking about the best places to visit and covers Witney.

WHY?

This buzzy town is pretty self-contained when it comes to shopping, eating out and things to do, so it's great if
you want to take baby steps into country living and feel rural, but not cut off. You have Oxford or Cheltenham a
reassuring 30 — 45 mins away, and there’s always loads on, from the weekly farmers market to the music
festival, so meeting people and getting stuck in isn't too daunting. The commute to Oxford can be plagued by
traffic issues but the train to London is easy enough and there's pretty parts to the town like Church Green,
above, with its perfect village green and church spire.

Appendix 2

Comments from local business owners

We had a great weekend for our first year at WMF. Being a local supplier, we got to showcase to our most local audience across two days.
We'll be back again next year!

Alex
Sausage Bros (Food Stall Vendor)

We love the Witney music festival and value it greatly. It is always busy with a wonderful atmosphere in our venues after the festival kicks out!

Paul Spink
Eagle Tavern Landlord & Fat Lils Owner

We're big supporters of Witney Music Festival! It brings people from out of town into Witney, which is always a good thing. We love attending

ourselves, and it's brilliant to see events that contribute to the local community.

Michael Dove

Three Horseshoes Landlord

Second year of attending the festival and the best yet! The festival has given me so much confidence in myself and my food that | am now
doing my food stall full time. Thank you for that, WMF team. The festival team are amazing and very professional to deal with, as well as a

great laugh. Thank you again and hope to be part of this amazing festival for many years to come. Up the chicken!

Earl
Earl's Jerk Chicken (Food Stall Vendor)

Page 73 Page 8 of 10




Appendix 3

Comments from local artists about the festival

For the past three years, I've had the pleasure of working with Stuart and the Witney Music Festival team, both as a solo artist and with my
band. Each time has been a fantastic experience. Stuart is always easy to reach and quick to answer any questions in the lead-up to a
performance. On the day of the festival, the entire stage crew is amazing - they make everything easy and stress-free, and | can't recommend
them enough. The organisation at all of their events is outstanding. Beyond performing, I've attended many of the gigs and events put on by
WMF, and every single one has been brilliant. The acts are always great, the amenities are well-organised, and the atmosphere is wonderful.
Whether you're looking to perform or just enjoy some great music, the Witney Music Festival is a must-attend event.

Georgia
Violet band

Witney Music Festival is an absolutely vital event for both established creatives and up-and-coming artists in the local area. The festival
provides a thoroughly professional environment for musicians, DJs and performers to ply their trade and for the next generation to find both
development and inspiration within, as well as putting on an incredible event for the enjoyment of the entire community across all ages and

backgrounds.

Shaun
The Scribes (Live Act, Dance Stage)

Appendix 4

Comments from local residents

The Witney Music Festival is certainly one of the highlights of my year. The team involved have taken it from strength to strength year on year,
and it's something we can really take pride in. Catering for all music tastes, the event brings everyone together for a perfect value festival
where we continue to make fond memories. This, along with the Cogges Beer festival, are my two particular favourite local events, and | can't
wait for 2026!

David Hambridge
Witney Resident

I'm writing to express my support for the Witney Music Festival and to highlight the many benefits it brings to our community. The festival not
only showcases fantastic local talent and a wide range of musical genres, but also fosters a sense of pride and togetherness among residents.
It's an inclusive, family-friendly event that brings people of all ages together in celebration of music - something that's increasingly needed in
today's world. Beyond the social and cultural value, the festival has a positive economic impact on the town. Local businesses, from pubs and
cafés to shops and vendors, benefit from increased footfall and trade during the event. It puts Witney on the map as a vibrant and welcoming
place to visit, supporting tourism and community spirit alike. | believe continued support for the festival is an investment in the town's identity,

wellbeing, and future.

Mick Morris
Witney Resident

Cracking little festival! As a new parent taking a baby to a festival for the first time, it was perfect. Really well laid out and organised, very

welcoming, with great facilities. Loads of variety of acts too. Long may it continue!

Dr Jonathan Reeves
Ex-Witney Resident

Page 74 Page 9 of 10



Appendix 5

Find Out More About Tough To Talk

Tough To Talk is @ UK charity whose mission is to reduce male suicide and break the stigma surrounding
men’s issues and poor mental health. We collaborate with organisations to confront this crisis directly,
offering impactful initiatives such as our powerful Tough Talks, suicide prevention and intervention

training, and bespoke, targeted campaigns designed to support men and foster cultural change. We aim
to create spaces where men feel empowered to speak openly, seek help, and rediscover hope. Together,
we can save lives. Join us in breaking the silence and building a future where no man feels alone.”

FIND OUT MORE

Page 75 Page 10 of 10



Appendix
By virtue of the Public Bodies (Admission to Meetings) Act 1960 s1 PP

Document is Restricted

Page 76



Appendix

WITNEY

TOWN COUNCIL

SPTIR T

Memorandum of Understanding
Partnership Agreement

This Memorandum of Understanding Partnership Agreement (“the agreement”) is made and
entered into as of 14™ February 2023.

BETWEEN: Witney Town Council (Partner A) located at:

Town Hall
Market Square
Witney

0X28 6AG

AND: Witney Music Festival Ltd (Partner B) located at:

Whereas Partner A and Partner B are desirous to enter this memorandum of understanding
between them, setting out the terms and conditions of the Partnership.

Now therefore, in consideration of the mutual agreements contained in this Agreement, the
parties hereto agree as follows:

1. Partnership Purpose & Scope

The purpose of the Agreement is to clearly identify the roles and responsibilities of each
Partner as they relate to the facilitation of the Witney Music Festival, held annually on the
Leys Recreation Ground. In particular, this MOU is intended to outline the way in which they
can work together to ensure the continued success of this valued community event
administratively, operationally, financially and to:

“Build better communities by connecting people through music, and use this success to
inspire and assist the next generation of musicians and performers to choose a life of
music as their career” Witney Music Festival Vision Statement 2022

“Help inspire, motivate, and provide opportunity for local people who wish to be
involved with music and the performing arts, and through public performances, to
strengthen the sense of community.” Witney Music Festival Mission, 2022

Witney Town Council, 51B Market Square, Witney, OX28 6AG | info@witney-tc.gov.uk | 01993 704379

Page 77



2. Background

Witney Music Festival has held an event on the Leys Recreation Ground since 2015, the
culmination of several weeks of live music held in and around Witney, the only exception
being, during the Covid-19 pandemic.

Witney Town Council, as custodian of the Leys Recreation Ground has permitted the festival
to take place following submission of an Event Management Plan (signed off by the Council’s
Health & Safety Consultants), and relevant method statements and insurance documents.

In recent years, the use of the Leys has been subsidised by the Town Council on behalf of
Witney residents to the annual sum of £3,800 (2021 figure).

In 2021, the Town Council gave Witney Music Festival a grant of £2,500 in addition to help
ensure the event went ahead.

3. Obligations of the Parties

The partners acknowledge that no contractual relationship is created between them by this
Memorandum Agreement. The Partners agree to work together to ensure the success of the
Partnership and to assign appropriate financial, administrative, and managerial resources to

the Partnership to achieve that aim. The scope of the partnership shall be defined by mutual
consent and will include:

a) Working together to build a cohesive and inclusive community through music
b) Furthering a talent pathway for the youth of Witney
c) Showecasing Witney for tourism
d) Supporting local businesses
4. (Partner A) Responsibilities under this MOU

Partner A shall undertake the following responsibilities:

a) Allowing annual use of the Leys Recreation Ground (designated events side) ona
date between 15t - 30" June (to be confirmed in writing)

b) 9 months’ notice can be provided by the council for the need of a fallow year.

c) Allowing ‘free use’ of the Leys site only on the designated date above which will
be subsidised by the Town Council at the approximate cost of £3,800 per annum

d) Providing a financial contribution to the facilitation of the Leys event annually. The
amount to be confirmed once the following year’s budget has been set in

December/January, subject to the Council’s financial standing (See Transfer of
Funds).

e) Providing professional guidance of the Council’s Health & Safety Consultants to
reach a mutually acceptable, safe Event Management Plan

Witney Town Council, 51B Market Square, Witney, 0X28 6AG | info@witney-tc.gov.uk | 01993 704379

Page 78



f)

Promotion of the event and other WMF events during the year through Town
Council media channels

5. (Partner B) Responsibilities under this MOU

Partner B shall undertake the following responsibilities
Provide a damage deposit at the agreed level at the time of booking.

If any damages are incurred during the event exceeding the level of the damage
deposit, these costs will be reimbursed to Witney Town Council

Provide a completed Event Management Plan and accompanying documents to
Partner A no later than 90 days before the Festival

Promote Partner A and its involvement in the Leys event on social media in the
run up/during the event and through the use of banners on The Leys Recreation
Ground ‘

Recognise the Council’s Carbon neutrality and Climate commitments throughout
the preparation and running of the event.

6. Understandings

It is mutually understood and agreed by and between the parties that:

a)

d)

e)

The parties agree to work together in partnership and co-operate in good faith
and to fully participate to develop the project conclude formal agreement

Witney Town Council is not underwriting the Witney Music Festival Event and
shall not be liable for any charges and will not be liable for any outstanding debts
following the event.

This MOU Agreement in no way restricts the ability of either party to enter into
any agreement with any other third party in relation to the proposed event.

Witney Music Festival should accommodate Oxfordshire Music & Arts Trust in
showcasing Witney’s young musical talent during the course of the event held on
The Leys Recreation Ground

None of the services, financing or resources set out in clauses 4-5 shall be deemed
to be a commitment until such time as budget setting is completed annually by
January

Witney Town Council, 51B Market Square, Witney, OX28 6AG | info@witney-tc.gov.uk | 01993 704379

Page 79



7.

10.

11.

Entire Agreement

The provisions herein contained constitute the entire agreement between the parties
hereto and supersede all previous communication, representations, expectations,
understandings, and agreements whether verbal or written between parties or their
respective representatives with respect to the subject matter of this MOU. They shall
not be modified or amended except by written agreement signed by the Partners and
as agreed by the Full Council* (*Partner A only)

Transfer of funds

As part of the partnership agreement the council commits to help funding the
WMEF. The council agreed in 2023 to support the WMF with a grant of £10,000 and it
is recommended this continue in the future to be confirmed by the council each
year. The council reserve the right to vary the amount if financial pressures in that
year dictate it is prudent to do so.

Termination

The parties of this MOU have the right to terminate their participation individually or
jointly in this Agreement at any time, provided that advanced written notice is
delivered to the other party at an appropriate time of the year.

In the event of termination, all responsibilities and understanding will be re-
negotiated under regular Town Council hiring terms and conditions.

Confidentiality

Each party shall treat as strictly confidential all information received or obtained as a
result of entering into this agreement

Each party may disclose information which would otherwise be confidential if and to
the extent:

e Required by law
e Theinformation has come into the public domain through no fault of that party
e The other party has given prior written approval to the disclosure

Authorisation & Execution

The signing of this MOU does not constitute a formal undertaking, and as such it
simply intends that the signatories shall strive to reach, to the best of their abilities,
the goals and objectives stated in this MOU.

Witney Town Council, 51B Market Square, Witney, OX28 6AG | info@witney-tc.gov.uk | 01993 704379

Page 80



This agreement shall be signed by Witney Town Council and Witney Music Festival and
shall be effective as of the date written above.

Upon the signing of this MOU by both parties, this agreement shall be in full force and
effect.

Printed Name SHARcn GR=TH

Date |u /2|22

Second Party Signatur

Printed Name s MATIS WAL .

Date /5/% /z;

Witney Town Council, 51B Market Square, Witney, OX28 6AG | info@witney-tc.gov.uk | 01993 704379

Page 81



	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	7 Communications Report
	9b Witney Forum Minutes
	11 Youth Council
	12 Youth Services
	Witney Town Council Thank you

	13 Flag Flying Policy Review
	Flag Flying Policy Review 2025
	Flag Flying Calendar 2025

	14 Public Space Protection Order (PSPO) - A40 Dual Carriageway
	16 Vehicle Activated Sign (VAS) for Witney
	17 Litter Picking Equipment
	Community Litterpicking - Station Collection

	18 Street Furniture Correspondence.
	Seating Visual
	Seating Fixing
	Seating Quote

	19 Third Party Events
	Witney Music Festival 2025 Report for Witney Town Council (2)
	Income & Costs 2025
	WMF - Signed MOU Partnership Agreement 2023


